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Oakland M. E. Church (Old Oakland Methodist Church)
Mineral Hill Road at Oakland Road c.1860

Originally there was only one Oakland Methodist Church, and it worshipped in the
building now known as Old Oakland M. E. Church. The origin of the congregation is unknown,
but it built the old building in 1860, apparently, although the church does not show up on the
1862 map. The Civil War, and the question of slavery, divided many churches, including this
one, and the New Oakland M. E. Church, South (CARR-1017) was formed in 1866. Both
congregations continued to use the same building until 1891, when the trustees of old Oakland
informed the pastor of New Oakland that the southern Methodists could not use their building
after 15 November 1891. The two Oakland churches were merged back into one congregation
on 15 November 1942 and the church became known simply as The Oakland Methodist Church.
The new church building was used for services, but this old building was retained. It is now
leased to another church as a sanctuary.
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Magi No.
DOE yes no

1.

Name

(indicate preferred name)

historic

Oakland M. E. Church

and/or common

01d Oakland Methodist Church

2.

Location

street & number

Mineral Hill Road at Oakland Road

____not for publication

city, town FEldersburg —x vicinity of congressional district

state  Maryland county Carroll

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

____ district- — public _X_occupied —___agriculture —_ museum

X building(s) X private —___ unoccupied ___ commercial —_ park

— structure — both —_work in progress — educational — private residence

____ site Public Acquisition Accessible - entertainment _X_religious
. object ____inprocess _X_ yes: restricted — government ——_ scientific

- being considered __ yes: unrestricted — industrial transportation
_X not applicable —__no —___ military —_ other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Oakland Methodist Church

street & number 5901 Mineral Hill Road telephone no.:

city,town  Sykesville state and zip code Maryland 21784

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Courthouse Annex liber

street & number 55 North Court Street folio

city, town  Westminster state MD

6. Representation in Existing mistorical surveys

title

date — federal ___ state __county ___ local
TN

.apository for survey records
city, town state




7. Description Survey No. CARR-1018

Condition ) Check one Check one

—__ excellent ___ deteriorated ____ unaltered X original site

X good ____ruins —X_ altered — moved date of move
— fair ____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today. '

Summary: Old Oakland M. E. Church is located at the northeast corner of the
intersection of Mineral Hill Road, Oakland Mills Road, and Oakland (Melville) Road,
about 214 miles northeast of Eldersburg in southeast Carroll County. The church faces
‘west, and there is a cemetery to the east and north. The church is a two-bay by three- "
bay, one-story structure with rubble stone walls that are stuccoed. The gable roof has
asphalt shingles and an east-west ridge. The west elevation has two pair of double doors.
In the gable end are two 3/3 sash. The raking eave has jigsawn bargeboards with a saw-
tooth type pattern. According to the pastor, there is a datestone with "1860" on this
elevation, but it is now stuccoed over. Both the south and north elevations are alike,
with three square-headed windows of stained glass. The interior walls are plaster on
masonry. The gabled ceiling is plaster, and is coved at the eaves. Below the cove is a
run plaster cornice on the north and south walls. The church has a balcony on the west
end, with winder stairs in the southwest and northwest corners. The pews are made of
plain boards and are grained: They are set in three columns, with two aisles. On the
east end is a raised dais with a three-piece altar rail.

Old Oakland M. E. Church is located at the northeast corner of the intersection of
Mineral Hill Road, Oakland Mills Road, and Oakland (Melville) Road, about 22 miles
northeast of Eldersburg in southeast Carroll County. The church faces west, toward
" Mineral Hill Road, and sits on a flat lot amidst large trees and a cemetery to the east and
north. Most of the stones are set in even rows, facing west, although several rows to the
far north are set diagonally, facing southeast. About the earliest stone is 1856, but many
are from the period 1880-1900.

‘The church is a two-bay by three-bay, one-story structure with rubble stone walls
that are stuccoed. The gable roof has asphalt shingles and an east-west ridge. There isa
box cornice, now covered with aluminum, with returns. The west elevation has two pair
of double doors, with stone sills and a five-light transom above. Between the doors and
the transom is an ogee moulding that is carried around on the panelled jambs. The soffit
is also panelled. The doors have four panels each. The panels are sunk and have narrow
ogee panel moulds, with a small bead on the inside of the ogee. In the gable end are two
3/3 sash with stone sills. The raking eave has jigsawn bargeboards with a saw-tooth type
pattern. According to the pastor, there is a datestone with "1860" on this elevation, but

it is now stuccoed over.

N Both the south and north elevations are alike, with three square-headed windows
of stained glass that have stone sills. The windows have a dark blue margin, an amber
field, green vertical stripes and lilac horizontal bands. Each window has a circular
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medallion painted with a different symbol, set above center. At the bottom is a memorial
tablet with pale blue oval glass inside it. The glass design of the window is in a lancet
shape, with blue glass in the spandrels. There are three narrow, slit vents in the
foundation. Between the center and east bays is a parged interior chimney stack. The
chimney on the north elevation is a little taller than that on the south. The east elevation
has one short, square-headed stained glass window like the others. The sill is parged.
The eaves have the same bargeboards as found on the west.

The interior walls are plaster on masonry, and appear to have originally been
painted a slate color. The gabled ceiling is plaster, and is coved at the eaves. Below the
cove is a run plaster cornice on the north and south walls. It has a torus at the top and
bottom, with a cavetto in between. The east elevation has only the top torus in the
cornice, while the west elevation has nothing. There is a plain baseboard. The random-
width board floors run east-west. The church has a balcony on the west end, with winder
stairs in the southwest and northwest corners. The ceiling under the balcony is plastered
and slopes down from west to east. The stairs are enclosed with plaster walls, and have
a closet underneath them. The closet doors have vertical, beaded-edge-and-center boards,
surrounds with a beaded interior edge, and are grained. There are doors on the stairs
that match those on the closets, but are painted. The interior side of the front (west)
doors are also grained. The interior walls of the stairs have beaded edge vertical boards
that were painted a dark olive green. The balcony has an aisle across the front, with
three steps up to the west that hold benches.

A later wall with two doors has been constructed under the east end of the balcony
to create a vestibule on the west. Two engaged Greek Doric columns survive, partly
hidden by the wall; there is one under each end of the balcony. The balcony wall above
has broad, depressed lancets with flat, sunk panels. The pews are made of plain boards,
topped with a simple flat moulding, and grained. They are set in three columns, with
two aisles. On the east end is a raised dais with a three-piece altar rail. The rail has the
same gothic motif as the balcony, but is open between the balusters, not panelled. The
finish on the rail is deteriorated and it is not clear whether it was grained or simply
painted. There is a raised podium for the pulpit, which has since been moved aside.

The pulpit is dark pine, with flat sunk panels in gothic arches. Along the east wall are
five walnut chairs. Three are from New Oakland M. E. Church, South, according to the
pastor, while two are original to this church.

KS/1h:7-20-93:CARR1018.des




8. Significance |  Survey No. CARR-1018

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
_ prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture_X_ religion
—— 1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —conservation — law — science
’ - 1500-1599 _____ agriculture - economics — literature .. — Sculpture
—1600-1699 _X_ architecture ____education —_ military _.__social/
— 17001799 ___ art - engineering —__ music . "humanitarian .
X 1800-1899 ___ commerce — exploration/settiement ____ philosophy — theater
— 1900- —__ communications — industry —— politics/government ~ _ transpoitation
—___invention : —other (specify)
Specific dates ~_ 1860 Builder/Architect unknown
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B XC _D
and/or

Applicable Exception: __ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ nationmal _ state Y local

Prepare both a stimmary paragraph of significance and a gefisral statement of histor’y an
support. - -

Summary: Originally there was only one Oakland Methodist Church, and it worshipped
in the building now known as Old Oakland M. E. Church. The origin of the
congregation is unknown, but it built the old building in 1860, apparently, although the
church does not show up on the 1862 map. The Civil War, and the question of slavery,
divided many churches, including this one, and the New Oakland M. E. Church, South
(CARR-1017) was formed in 1866. Both congregations continued to use the same
building until 1891, when the trustees of old Oakland informed the pastor of New
Oakland that the southern Methodists could not use their building after 15 November
1891. The two Oakland churches were merged back into one congregation on 15
November 1942 and the church became known simply as The Oakland Methodist Church.
The new church building was used for services, but this old building was retained. It is
now leased to another church as a sanctuary.

Geographic Organization: Piedmont

Chronological/Development Period: Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870
Historic Period Themes: Architecture, Religion

Resource Types: Church, Rural vernacular

Originally there was only one Oakland Methodist Church, and it worshipped in
the building now known as Old Oakland M. E. Church. The origin of the congregation
is unknown, but it built the old building in 1860, apparently, although the church does
not show up on the 1862 map. The Civil War, and the question of slavery, divided
many churches, including this one, and the New Oakland M. E. Church, South (CARR-
1017) was formed in 1866. Both congregations continued to use the same building until
1891, when the trustees of old Oakland informed the pastor of New Oakland that the
southern Methodists could not use their building after 15 November 1891.

o Around 1885 the church had the same stucco finish and bargeboards found today,
as well as the same front doors; the panels in these doors were Ipainted a light color,
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ADDENDA

Traditionally, the date of construction for the Old Oakland M. E. Church is given as
1860, although the source of this date is unknown. A correspondent in 1878 gives the date 1851
for the structure and leaves little doubt that the existing building is the one being referred to.

The Oakland church is a substantal and comfortable stone edifice, built in
eighteen hundred and fifty-one, which the ministers of the M. E. and M. E.
church South, alternately hold divine service.

The mention of stone suggests that the building was not yet stuccoed. The stucco is
clearly shown on a photograph dated c. 1885, which helps to date this alteration rather closely
between 1878 and c. 1885.

Source: Westminster Democratic Advocate
16 November 1878, p. 3. ¢c. 1

KMS/Ih:1-13-93:1018add . kms
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while the rest of the door was dark. In front of the church was a picket fence. The posts
were round uneven logs tapered at the top. The tops of the pickets were decoratively cut,
and the tops of the pickets on the double gate were set on a diagonal, being higher in the
center than at either end. By around 1900 the stucco was painted a medium color, and
was scored or striped to imitate ashlar. The doors and jambs were painted a light color,
and now the panels were darker. This changed again by about 1940, when the doors
were painted one dark color, and the striping was gone from the walls. By this time the
stained glass had been installed.

The two Oakland churches were merged back into one congregation on 15
November 1942 and the church became known simply as The Oakland Methodist Church.
The new church building was used for services, but this old building was retained. It is
now leased to another church as a sanctuary.

Stone is a rare building material for any structure, and represents a greater
investment in time and money. Most stone churches in Carroll County are later, and are
located in towns, where there was a greater concentration of money. The fact that
Oakland M. E. Church is stone makes it significant, but the church also retains a very
high degree of integrity, both inside and out. There are few rural churches in Carroll
County that retain this much integrity.

KS/1h:7-20-93:CARR1018.sig




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. CARR-1018

"Oakland U.M. Church Harvest of Memories Homecoming", 1988, Margaretta McCoy

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangie name _Finkshurg Quadrangle scale __1:24000

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By -

nameftitle Renneth M. Short, Historic Planner

organization Carroll County Planning Department date  TJuly 27, 1993
street & number 225 North Center Street telephone  (410) 857-2145
cityortown Westminster state MD

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438
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Wm. Tagg, Blacksmith. Al wock done promptly to kinds of Paper. Book and Newspapers a specialty,
order, and made to order at short notice, Office, No. 40
South Charles Street, Baltimore,
J:n-et‘t' lii‘ Shauck, Proprictor of first-class Flouring
i

Wi, Stubblns, Manager of Caledonla Paper Mills.

William Mengel, Blacksmith. Horseshoeing and Re-
paiving promptly and neatly doe, Pleass extend
to him your patronage.

Gerh Ba;demuber. Mivister in the Luthersn Chogch,

CARR-1018
Oakland M. E. Church
Mineral Hill Road at Oakland Read

R

TLake, Griffin & Stevenson Atlas, 1877
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